
Join us!  In an effort to enhance meetings during the 
COVID-19 shutdown, the City Council invites you to join 
and/or participate in a variety of ways:  Via computer 

Zoom meetings (no app is necessary), telephone, email 
and/or text!  See details on page 3. 

Vestavia Hills 
City Council Agenda 
September 28, 2020 

6:00 PM 

1. Call to Order

2. Roll Call

3. Invocation –  Butch Williams, Vestavia Hills Senior Chaplain

4. Pledge Of Allegiance

5. Announcements, Candidates and Guest Recognition

6. Proclamation – Vestavia Hills Down Syndrome Day – October 1, 2020 and National Down

Syndrome Month – October 2020

7. City Manager’s Report

8. Councilors’ Reports

9. Financial Reports – George Sawaya, Deputy Finance Director

10. Approval Of Minutes – September 14, 2020 (Work Session) and September 14, 2020

(Regular Meeting)

Old Business 

11. Ordinance Number 2947 – Annexation – 90 Day Final – 2601 Fargo Drive, Lot 6, Block 2,

Twin Branch Estates; South Sector; Tingting Dong, Owner   (public hearing)

12. Ordinance Number 2948 – Rezoning – 2601 Fargo Drive, Lot 6, Block 2, Twin Branch

Estates; South Sector; Rezone From Jefferson County R-1 To Vestavia Hills R-2;

Compatible Zoning For Annexation; Tingting Dong, Owner   (public hearing)

13. Ordinance Number 2949 – Annexation – 90 Day Final – 2520 Skyland Drive; Lot 11, Block

2, Dolly Ridge Estates; Keavy And Nathan Ladner, Owners   (public hearing)

14. Ordinance Number 2950 – Rezoning - 2520 Skyland Drive; Lot 11, Block 2, Dolly Ridge

Estates; Rezone From Jefferson County E-2 To Vestavia Hills R-1; Compatible Zoning For

Annexation; Keavy And Nathan Ladner, Owners   (public hearing)



15. Ordinance Number 2951 – Annexation – 90 Day Final – 3652 Altadena Drive, Lot 4,

Altadena Acres; Edgar And Cathey Davis, Owners    (public hearing)

16. Ordinance Number 2952 – Rezoning – 3652 Altadena Drive, Lot 4, Altadena Acres; Rezone

From Jefferson County E-1 To Vestavia Hills E-2; Compatible Zoning For Annexation;

Edgar And Cathey Davis, Owners    (public hearing)

17. Ordinance Number 2953 – Annexation – 90 Day Final – 2495 Dolly Ridge Trail; Lot 2,

Block 1, Dolly Ridge Estates, 1st Add; Patrick And Ellen Pantazis, Owners   (public hearing)

18. Ordinance Number 2954 – Rezoning – 2495 Dolly Ridge Trail; Lot 2, Block 1, Dolly Ridge

Estates, 1st Add; Rezone From Jefferson County E-2 To Vestavia Hills R-1; Compatible

Zoning For Annexation; Patrick And Ellen Pantazis, Owners    (public hearing)

19. Ordinance Number 2955 – Rezoning – 2768 Misty Lane, 2758 And 2764 Rocky Ridge Road;

Rezone From Jefferson County E-2 To Vestavia Hills R-9, Planned Residential Subdivision;

Prezoning Prior To Annexation For A Development Of 6 (Six) Single-Family Homes;

Tamworth, LLC, Owners    (public hearing)

20. Ordinance Number 2956 – Annexation – 90 Day Final - 2768 Misty Lane, 2758 And 2764

Rocky Ridge Road; Tamworth, LLC, Owners    (public hearing)

New Business 

21. Ordinance Number 2957 – An Ordinance Authorizing The Mayor And City Manager To

Execute And Deliver A Memo Of Understanding With The Vestavia Hills Chamber Of

Commerce

22. Ordinance Number 2958 – An Ordinance Authorizing The Mayor And City Manager To

Execute And Deliver An Agreement With RiverTree Systems, Inc., For Auditing Services

For The City Of Vestavia Hills

New Business (Requesting Unanimous Consent) 

First Reading (No Action To Be Taken At This Meeting) 

23. Motion for Adjournment

24. Citizens Comments

25. Executive Session



SPECIAL NOTICE CONCERNING CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS 
 
Due to the COVID-19 “Stay at Home” Order issued by Gov. Ivey, the City Council work 
sessions and meetings are available via video-conference and teleconference. If you chose not 
to attend in person, you may still participate. Following are instructions for three options to 
participate remotely. 
 
 
COMPUTER PARTICIPATION (view/participate in real time) 
 
To participate in by videoconference, click https://us02web.zoom.us/j/4555343275. When the 
Zoom.us window opens in your browser, click “Allow” so that the page may open to a waiting 
room. The host will open the meeting and bring all into the meeting room at that time.  All 
participants will be automatically muted upon entrance to the meeting. If you wish to speak during 
time(s) identified for public input, activate the “Raise Hand” feature and unmute yourself by 
toggling the mute button. When the Mayor recognizes you and gives you the floor, state your name 
and address for the record and then you may address the Council. 
 
Using the icons on the Zoom screen, you can:  

 Mute/unmute your microphone (far left)  
 Turn on/off camera (“Start/Stop Video”)  
 View Participants – opens a pop-out screen that includes the “Raise Hand” icon that you 

may use to raise a virtual hand  
 Change your screen name displayed in the participant list and video window  
 Toggle between “speaker” and “gallery” views – “Speaker view” shows the active 

speaker; “Gallery view” tiles all of the meeting participants 
 
TELEPHONE PARTICIPATION (view/participate in real time) 
 
To participate by telephone, dial 312.626.6799 and enter the meeting ID: 455 534 3275. All 
participants will be automatically muted upon entrance to the meeting. If you wish to speak during 
time(s) identified for public input, press *6 on your phone keypad to unmute yourself. Then state 
your name and wait for the Mayor to recognize you. When the Mayor recognizes you and gives 
you the floor, state your name and address for the record and then address the Council. 
 
 
TEXT AND/OR EMAIL (prior to the meeting or in real time) 
 
If you do not wish to join the meeting but would like to ask a question or make a statement 
regarding an item on the agenda, you may email the City Council directly at 
City.Council@vhal.org. You may also text your question/statement to City Council at 
205.517.1370. Both of these options are available prior to and during each work session and 
meeting. Be sure to provide your name and address for the record and your comments will be 
recited to the City Council as the corresponding item is being addressed. Note: As a matter of 
record, your name and address are required. If identification is not provided, your 
comment/question will not be presented. 



WHEREAS, Down syndrome is the most frequently occurring chromosomal disorder and is the 
leading cause of intellectual and developmental delay in the United States; and 

 
WHEREAS,  approximately one in every 691 children are born with Down syndrome, 

representing an estimated 5,000 births per year in the United States with 
approximately 85 of those annual births occurring in Alabama; and  

 
WHEREAS, today through the efforts of parents, activists, advocacy organizations and self-

advocates, people with Down syndrome are offered transition services and 
vocational training; have meaningful relationships and experience a life of 
inclusion and rewarding independence; and 

 
WHEREAS, yet despite significant increases in lifespan and intellectual opportunities over the 

past decade, there is still much work to be done regarding the rights to equality, 
education, medical care, research, employment and support for people with Down 
syndrome; and 

 
WHEREAS,  all citizens are encouraged to work together to celebrate the lives of individuals 

with Down syndrome, recognize their accomplishments, promote awareness and 
remember to appreciate and regard every individual with dignity as a valued 
member of the community. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, I, Ashley C. Curry, by virtue of the authority vested in me as 

Mayor of the City of Vestavia Hills in the State of Alabama, do hereby proclaim 
October 1, 2020 as Down Syndrome Day and the month of October 2020 as  

 
NATIONAL DOWN SYNDROME  

AWARENESS MONTH 
 
in the City of Vestavia Hills to support the initiatives of organizations working to 
ensure people with Down syndrome have adequate services, are valued by society 
and can lead fulfilling and productive lives in our community. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have 
hereunto set my hand and caused the Seal 
of the City of Vestavia Hills to be affixed 
this the 28th day of September 2020. 

 
 

__________________________________
______ 
Ashley C. Curry 
Mayor 
 

 



City Council Minutes 
Work Session 

Page 1 
 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

MINUTES 
 

WORK SESSION 
 

SEPTEMBER 14, 2020 
 

The City Council of Vestavia Hills met in special work session on this date at 1:00 PM, 
following publication and posting pursuant to Alabama law.  Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, in 
coordination with a Proclamation from Governor Ivey and pursuant to Orders from the Alabama 
State Health Officer, requiring social distancing along with limits of attendees, this meeting was 
held with a portion of Staff and general public/audience members attending via Zoom.com 
following publication pursuant to Alabama law.  Mayor Curry was out of town on a family matter 
but participated via Zoom and passed the gavel to Mayor Pro-Tem Weaver who presided.  The 
Mayor Pro-Tem called the work session to order and the City Clerk called the roll with the 
following: 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:    Mayor Ashley C. Curry* 

Rusty Weaver, Mayor Pro-Tem 
      Kimberly Cook, Councilor** 
      Paul Head, Councilor* 
      George Pierce, Councilor** 
 
OTHER OFFICIALS PRESENT:  Patrick H. Boone, City Attorney 

Rebecca Leavings, City Clerk 
      Jason Hardin, Police Captain 
      Umang Patel, Court Director 
      Darrin Estes, IT Director 

Ryan Farrell, Fire Marshal 
Shawn Jackson, Asst. Fire Chief 
Keith Blanton, Building Official 
Taneisha Tucker, Library Official 
Brian Davis, Public Services Director 
Christopher Brady, City Engineer* 
C.J. Elliot, Fire Inspector* 
Cinnamon McCulley, Communications Specialist 
Marvin Green, Fire Chief*** 

       *present via Zoom or telephone 
       **arrived at 1:08 PM 
       ***arrived at 2:00 PM 
 
 The Mayor Pro-Tem called the work session to order and indicated that this work session 
is dedicated to the discussion of the City Manager’s proposed FY2021 budget. 



City Council Minutes 
Work Session 

Page 2 
 

 
DISCUSSIONS OF FY2021 BUDGETS 

 
 Mr. Downes reviewed a high-level scope of the budget focusing on the revenue side and 
stated that each Department Head will answer any questions.  He stated there were some last 
minute changes because retirement and insurance costs are estimated until the actual information 
is received from the various entities.  He showed the net change of an additional $51,000 surplus 
to the General Fund Balance is now reflected in the newer budget.  He indicated that, at the last 
second, the Sybil Temple identified at problem at the Temple that needed addressing.  With 
COVID-19, they have not been able to raise funds.  They identified a crack in the Temple that 
needed to be repaired at a cost of $5,000 so they have requested assistance by adding a $5,000 
appropriation in the capital budget.   
 
 Mr. Downes explained dedicated funding to pay for certain expenditures including taxes 
dedicated to street paving, E-9-1-1 funding, courts, library state-aid, library donations, tag 
services, capital fund dedicated to a capital plan, Community Spaces fund. 
 
 Each Department Head explained the requested changes to each departmental budget. 
 
 Mr. Downes reminded the Council that an additional bid for Phase III Wald Park will be 
going out to finish up but there are issues with having multiple contractors on site. 
 
 Mr. Downes stated that they have been working daily with AmWaste.  They have currently 
been working with Republic to see what they have been doing, how they have been working and 
suggestions for improvements for when they begin which would include smaller routes and 6 day 
a week services.  He stated this would give the ability to address issues on Saturdays and allow 
smaller routes to allow the trucks to collect waste that’s not inside the regular containers.  He 
stated that letters will soon be going out to all addresses explaining the route cycle, the rules, 
reminders of good practices, etc. 
 

CITIZEN COMMENTS 
 
 At 2.44 PM, Mrs. Cook made a motion to adjourn.  The meeting adjourned at 2:45 PM. 
 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



City Council Minutes 
September 14, 2020 

Page 1 
 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

MINUTES 
 

SEPTEMBER 14, 2020 
 

The City Council of Vestavia Hills met in regular session on this date at 6:00 PM, 
following publication and posting pursuant to Alabama law.  Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, in 
coordination with a Proclamation from Governor Ivey and pursuant to Orders from the Alabama 
State Health Officer, requiring social distancing along with limits of attendees, this meeting was 
held with a portion of Staff and general public/audience members attending via Zoom.com 
following publication pursuant to Alabama law.  Mayor Curry was out of town on a family matter 
but participated via Zoom and passed the gavel to Mayor Pro-Tem Weaver who presided.  The 
Mayor Pro-Tem called the meeting to order and the City Clerk called the roll with the following: 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:    Mayor Ashley C. Curry* 

Rusty Weaver, Mayor Pro-Tem (presiding) 
Kimberly Cook, Councilor 

      Paul Head, Councilor 
      George Pierce, Councilor 
 
OTHER OFFICIALS PRESENT:  Jeff Downes, City Manager 

Patrick H. Boone, City Attorney 
Rebecca Leavings, City Clerk 
Danny Rary, Police Chief  

      Jason Hardin, Police Captain 
      Keith Blanton, Building Official 
      Brian Davis, Public Services Director 
      Shawn Jackson, Asst. Fire Chief 
      Melvin Turner, III, Finance Director 
      George Sawaya, Asst. Finance Director 
      Cinnamon McCulley, Communications Specialist 
       *present via Zoom or telephone 
 

 
Randall Jones, Vestavia Hills Chaplain, led the invocation followed by the Pledge of 

Allegiance.   
 
 

ANNOUNCEMENTS, CANDIDATES, GUEST RECOGNITION  
 

 Mr. Pierce welcomed to the meeting Chamber Board members Roger Steur and Kelly 
Bottcher, both attending via Zoom. 



City Council Minutes 
September 14, 2020 

Page 2 
 

 Mr. Pierce pointed out a t-shirt reflecting an effort by Rotary Club called “Hike the Hills.”  
He explained the efforts and encourage participation.  He stated anyone can register by 
going to www.vestaviarotary.org .  He encouraged everyone to participate. 

 Mr. Head announced the regular Parks and Recreation Board meeting to be held tomorrow 
at 7 AM, offered via Zoom and in-person, in the Council Chambers. 

 
 

PROCLAMATION 
 
 The Mayor Pro-Tem presented a Proclamation designating September 17-23, 2020, as 
“Constitution Week.”  Mr. Downes read the proclamation aloud and the Mayor Pro-Tem 
presented it virtually via Zoom to Daughters of the Revolution members:  Cindi Akins, Cahawba 
Chapter, Jessie Schniper, Princess Sehoy Chapter; and Emily Blount, General Sumter Chapter. 
 
 Ms. Akins thanked the Council for the Proclamation. 
 
 Mrs. Cook stated that the Constitution was adopted 232 years ago and is one of the most 
importation foundational documents in the world, and she feels it is important to retain and protect 
the liberties afforded to the American people in that document. 
 
 

CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
 

 No report. 
 
 

COUNCILOR REPORTS 
 

 Mr. Pierce stated that he will be attending the Chamber luncheon via Zoom tomorrow 
with speaker, Dr. Todd Freeman, Vestavia City School Superintendent. 

 Mr. Weaver stated that the Planning and Zoning Commission met last Thursday via Zoom 
and indicated that there were no rezoning requests, only plats approved at that meeting. 

 Mr. Head announced the opening of the new pools over the Labor Day weekend.  He 
stated the opening went off phenomenally and that there were so many great compliments 
from residents visiting.   

 
 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
 The Mayor opened the floor for approval of the following minutes: August 17, 2020 
(Work Session), August 24, 2020 (Regular Meeting), September 1, 2020 (Special Called 
Meeting). 
 
MOTION Motion to approve the minutes, as amended, of the August 17, 2020 (Work 

Session), was by Mrs. Cook and second was by Mr. Pierce.  Roll call vote as 
follows: 



City Council Minutes 
September 14, 2020 

Page 3 
 

   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes  
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mayor Curry – yes  
   Mr. Weaver – abstained   motion carried. 
 
MOTION Motion to approve the minutes, as amended, of the August 24, 2020 (Regular 

Meeting), was by Mrs. Cook and seconded by Mr. Pierce.  Roll call vote as 
follows: 

   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – abstain  
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mayor Curry – yes  
   Mr. Weaver – yes   motion carried. 
 
MOTION Motion to approve the minutes, as amended, of the September 1, 2020 (Special 

Called Meeting) was by Mrs. Cook and seconded by Mr. Pierce.  Roll call vote as 
follows: 

   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – abstained  
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mayor Curry – yes  
   Mr. Weaver – yes   motion carried. 
 
 

OLD BUSINESS  
 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2945 
 

Ordinance Number 2945 – An Ordinance Approving And Adopting The General Fund 
Budget, A Special Revenue Fund Budget, A Capital Project Fund Budget And 
An Infrastructure And Community Spaces Project Fund Budget For The 
City Of Vestavia Hills For The Period Beginning October 1, 2020 Until 
September 30, 2021   (public hearing) 

 
 Mr. Weaver indicated that these four items are together and, even though they will be 
voted upon individually, there will be only one public hearing. 
 
MOTION Motion to approve Ordinance Number 2945 was by Mr. Pierce and second was by 

Mrs. Cook.  
 
 Mr. Downes stated that these items include the final 10% of this year’s budget, the 
approval to expense certain expenses to this year’s budget, approval of the FY2021 budgets and 
approvals for financing of certain capital assets for FY2021.  He stated these were discussed in 
the work session earlier today.  He explained amendments that were done since the first read 
which included final numbers for health insurance costs as well as retirement costs which 
improved the budget by approximately $50,000.  This also approves three months of hazard pay 
for employees at higher risk of exposure to COVID-19. 
 
 



City Council Minutes 
September 14, 2020 

Page 4 
 

 The Mayor Pro-Tem opened the floor for a public hearing for all four items.  There being 
no one else to further address the Council, the Mayor Pro-Tem closed the public hearing and 
called for the question.  Roll call vote as follows: 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes  
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mayor Curry – yes  
   Mr. Weaver – yes   motion carried. 
 
 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2944 
 

Ordinance Number 2944 – An Ordinance Approving The Final 10% Of The FY 2020 
Budgets For The City Of Vestavia Hills And Authorizing The City Manager 
To Expend An Amount For Certain Capital Expenditures To Be Expensed 
To The 2020 FY Budget   (public hearing) 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Ordinance Number 2944 was by Mr. Pierce and second was by 

Mrs. Cook.  
 
 There being no one else to further address the Council, the Mayor Pro-Tem closed the 
public hearing and called for the question.  Roll call vote as follows: 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes  
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mayor Curry – yes  
   Mr. Weaver – yes   motion carried. 
 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 5266 
 

Resolution Number 5266 – A Resolution Approving Financing Terms For City Vehicles 
And/Or Equipment Through BB&T Bank   (public hearing) 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 5266 was by Mr. Pierce and second was by 

Mr. Head.  
 
 There being no one else to further address the Council, the Mayor Pro-Tem closed the 
public hearing and called for the question.  Roll call vote as follows: 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes  
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mayor Curry – yes  
   Mr. Weaver – yes   motion carried. 
 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 5267 
 

Resolution Number 5267 – A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Grant 
Temporary Premium “Hazard” Pay To Essential Employees Continuing To 
Work During The COVID-19 Pandemic For A Period Of 3 Months   (public 
hearing) 



City Council Minutes 
September 14, 2020 

Page 5 
 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 5267 was by Mrs. Cook and second was by 

Mr. Head.  
 
 Mrs. Cook stated that this item will be funded by the CARES Act. 
 
 There being no one else to further address the Council, the Mayor Pro-Tem closed the 
public hearing and called for the question.  Roll call vote as follows: 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes  
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mayor Curry – yes  
   Mr. Weaver – yes   motion carried. 
 
 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2942 
 

Ordinance Number 2942 – Conditional Use Approval – 1452 Montgomery Highway – An 
Ordinance Approving A Conditional Use For Installation Of A 6’ Shaded 
Security Fence To Be Installed Around The Perimeter Of The Property, Use 
Of Major Mechanical Repair Of Motor Vehicles And Short-Term Storage Of 
Motor Vehicles With Conditions.  The Property Is Owned By CRM 
Enterprises, LLC And Is Zoned Vestavia Hills B-3 (Conditional Business 
District)   (public hearing) 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Ordinance Number 2942 was by Mr. Pierce, seconded by Mrs. 

Cook.  
 
 Mr. Weaver gave a report from the Planning and Zoning Commission on this conditional 
use application for installation of a 6’ perimeter fence at 1452 Montgomery Highway along with 
major mechanical use.  This property had a rock slide a few years ago.  He stated that, after much 
discussion, the request was approved with conditions.  Those conditions include a 5’ landscape 
buffer either on the property or ALDOT ROW to be approved by the Design Review Board; a 
geotechnical report which has been submitted to the City; an annual geotechnical report on the 
area of the slide to show maintained stability; and implementation, to the degree possible, of the 
site plan presented, which shows the landscaping and closing of one access to Montgomery 
Highway. 
 
 Mr. Pierce asked if the fence has already been installed. 
 
 Mr. Weaver explained that the fence was erected without a permit and a citation was 
issued on the project. He stated that tonight’s decision will determine the fate of that citation. 
 
 Loring Jones III, attorney for the petitioner, stated that the fence installation was a mutual 
error.  He stated that this fencing is purely for security and the fire department has been on the 
site training.  He stated that this is the fence his client is proposing in the request. 
 
 Mr. Pierce asked about ALDOT’s approval on the landscaping. 



City Council Minutes 
September 14, 2020 

Page 6 
 

 
 Mr. Jones stated that they aren’t sure about what they’ll be able to do for landscaping as 
the fencing is just inside their property line, so there isn’t much room to move. He stated that 
there were security concerns that the fence is intended to mitigate. 
 
 Mr. Pierce asked about the safety of City employees being on the site. 
 
 Mr. Jones stated that they do not own the slope behind, but that they hope to erect a “catch 
fence” to prevent any damage if the slope were to slide. 
 
 Mrs. Cook asked if there is anything the City can do to push along ALDOT’s approval on 
the landscaping. 
 
 Mr. Jones stated that they need to determine what they feasibly can do regarding the 
landscaping as the fence is located at the property line and they are limited. 
 
 The Mayor asked again about the landscaping that was proposed between the highway 
and the fence. 
 
 Mr. Loring stated that has been addressed. 
 
 Mrs. Cook asked City staff to do everything possible to facilitate and encourage ALDOT 
approval of landscaping to improve the appearance of the property from Highway 31. 
 
 Mr. Jones stated they are limited as to what they can do on concrete. 
 
 Mrs. Cook stated that it appears there is curb and grass and not just concrete. 
 
 Mr. Weaver stated the design will be submitted to ALDOT and then, if approved, will turn 
to DRB for approval. 
 
 Mrs. Leavings stated this will have to come to ALDOT first.  If not approved, the applicant 
will need to move the fence to allow the required 5’ buffer . 
 
 The Mayor Pro-Tem opened the floor for a public hearing.   
 
 Eric and Tracy Brosch, Willoughby Road, stated that they approached the City Council 
for an 8’ privacy fence previously and were denied because of aesthetics.  She indicated that she 
doesn’t see a difference between this and their fence except you have 35,000 vehicles passing this 
property daily.  She stated it is unsightly and ALDOT will take a lot of time, so why not move 
the fencing back so that landscaping can be installed now. 
 
 Mr. Weaver stated that this is commercial property, and not residential property, and that 
is a major difference between the Brosch conditional use request and this one. He stated that they 
hope the ALDOT consideration will be forthcoming soon. 
 



City Council Minutes 
September 14, 2020 

Page 7 
 

 There being no one else to further address the Council, the Mayor Pro-Tem closed the 
public hearing and called for the question.  Roll call vote as follows: 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes  
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mayor Curry – yes  
   Mr. Weaver – yes   motion carried. 
 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 

CERTIFICATE OF ELECTION 
 

Adoption Of Certificate Of Election – Paul Head 
 
MOTION Motion to adopt the Certificate of Election for Paul Head was by Mrs. Cook and 

second was by Mr. Pierce.  
 
 There being no one else to further address the Council, the Mayor Pro-Tem called for the 
question.  Roll call vote as follows: 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes  
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mayor Curry – yes  
   Mr. Weaver – yes   motion carried. 
 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 5269 
 

Resolution Number 5269 – A Resolution Declaring Certain Personal Property As Surplus 
And Directing The City Manager To Sell/Dispose/Donate Said Property 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 5269 was by Mr. Pierce and seconded by 

Mr. Head.  
 
 Ryan Farrell, Asst. Fire Chief, stated that this request is an opportunity to partner with the 
Fire College on use of the current fire safety trailer, which is used intermittently during the year 
but is difficult to store indoors. This will allow the indoor storage of the trailer at the Fire College 
and the VHFD can arrange to use this trailer, when needed, and the trailer will also be used by 
other communities in the area who cannot afford this piece of equipment.   
 
 There being no one else to further address the Council, the Mayor Pro-Tem called for the 
question.  Roll call vote as follows: 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes  
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mayor Curry – yes  
   Mr. Weaver – yes   motion carried. 
 
 
 
 



City Council Minutes 
September 14, 2020 

Page 8 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 5270 
 

Resolution Number 5270 – A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Execute And 
Deliver A Developer-Installed Extension Of Mains Agreement And Two (2) 
Copies Of A Letter Of Authorizing with the Birmingham Water Works 
Board Covering The Installation Of Water Mains And Appurtenances For 
The Crosshaven Drive And Green Valley Road Relocation Project 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 5270 was by Mrs. Cook and second was by 

Mr. Pierce.  
 
 Mr. Downes stated that this is relocation of water mains in the Crosshaven Drive 
expansion project.  He stated this was funded through the Tortorigi contract. 
 
 Mrs. Cook asked that Tortorigi make sure they keep the road in repair at the intersection 
of White Oak, Crosshaven and Green Valley Road as it is very rough. 
 
 There being no one else to further address the Council, the Mayor Pro-Tem called for the 
question.  Roll call vote as follows: 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes  
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mayor Curry – yes  
   Mr. Weaver – yes   motion carried. 
 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 5271 
 

Resolution Number 5271 – A Resolution Approving An Alcohol License For Publix 
Alabama LLC D/B/A Publix Alabama LLC 1675 For The Off-Premise Sale 
Of Beer And Table Wine; Robert S. Balcerak, Jr, Kris Jonczyk And 
Merriann M. Metz, Executives   (public hearing) 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 5271 was by Mr. Pierce and second was by 

Mr. Head.  
 
 Mr. Downes stated that this is for the Publix in construction on Morgan Drive. 
 
 Mr. James Minor, District Manager for Publix Supermarkets, explained that this request 
is for the Publix opening soon on Morgan Drive for off-premise beer and wine.  He stated their 
estimated opening is November 18. 
 
 Mr. Pierce asked about employee training. 
 
 Mr. Minor stated that they do extensive training with employees with ongoing training.  
They also have in-store auditing where cashiers are tested.  Employees failing testing are 
suspended and retrained.  A second fail requires termination. 
 



City Council Minutes 
September 14, 2020 

Page 9 
 

 Mr. Pierce asked about wine selection. 
 
 Mr. Minor stated that there will be a wider wine selection and craft beer as well at this 
particular location. 
 
 The Mayor Pro-Tem opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one else to 
further address the Council, the Mayor Pro-Tem called for the question.  Roll call vote as follows: 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes  
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mayor Curry – yes  
   Mr. Weaver – yes   motion carried. 
 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 5273 
 

Resolution Number 5273 – A Resolution Accepting A Bid For Mountainview Sidewalk 
Project And Authorizing The City Manager To Take All Actions Necessary 
To Secure Said Construction 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 5273 was by Mrs. Cook and seconded by 

Mr. Pierce.  
 
 Mr. Downes stated that there were four bids submitted.  Triple J Construction was 
determined to be the lower responsible bidder.  He stated that this is within budget and he 
recommends approval. 
 
 Mr. Pierce asked about the other bids, as they were much higher and wanted to ensure it 
is the same quality. 
 
 Mr. Brady explained that the other bidder was a new bidder. 
 
 There being no one else to further address the Council, the Mayor Pro-Tem called for the 
question.  Roll call vote as follows: 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes  
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mayor Curry – yes  
   Mr. Weaver – yes   motion carried. 
 
 
NEW BUSINESS (UNANIMOUS CONSENT REQUESTED) 
 
 The Mayor Pro-Tem opened the floor for unanimous consent for the consideration and 
approval of Resolution Number 5272. 
 
MOTION Motion for unanimous consent for the consideration and approval of Resolution 

Number 5272 was made by Mrs. Cook and second was by Mr. Pierce.  Roll call 
vote as follows: 

   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes  



City Council Minutes 
September 14, 2020 

Page 10 
 

   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mayor Curry – yes  
   Mr. Weaver – yes   motion carried. 
 
 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 5272 
 

Resolution Number 5272 – A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Take All 
Actions Necessary To Repair The HVAC For The Library In The Forest    
(public hearing) 

 
 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 5272 was by Mrs. Cook and second was by 

Mr. Head.  
 
 Mr. Downes stated that this repair is needed on the HVAC system at the Vestavia Hills 
Library in the Forest.  He explained that this is not covered under the City’s maintenance contract 
and needs to be repaired by Trane, who is proprietary on the system. 
 
 The Mayor Pro-Tem opened the floor for a public hearing.   
 
 Mrs. Cook stated that the requested amount is $6,372.00 and that the facility isn’t open 
currently open; however, the system must be operational to control humidity for the library 
materials and for employees who might be present in the facility. 
 
 Mr. Downes stated that the system has been manually operated until the control can be 
fixed. 
 
 There being no one else to further address the Council, the Mayor Pro-Tem called for the 
question.  Roll call vote as follows: 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes  
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mayor Curry – yes  
   Mr. Weaver – yes   motion carried. 
 
 
FIRST READING (NO ACTION TO BE TAKEN AT THIS MEETING)  

 Ordinance Number 2947 – Annexation – 90 Day Final – 2601 Fargo Drive, Lot 6, Block 2, 
Twin Branch Estates; South Sector; Tingting Dong, Owner   (public hearing) 

 Ordinance Number 2948 – Rezoning – 2601 Fargo Drive, Lot 6, Block 2, Twin Branch 
Estates; South Sector; Rezone From Jefferson County R-1 To Vestavia Hills R-2; Compatible 
Zoning For Annexation; Tingting Dong, Owner   (public hearing) 

 Ordinance Number 2949 – Annexation – 90 Day Final – 2520 Skyland Drive; Lot 11, Block 
2, Dolly Ridge Estates; Keavy And Nathan Ladner, Owners   (public hearing) 



City Council Minutes 
September 14, 2020 

Page 11 
 

 Ordinance Number 2950 – Rezoning - 2520 Skyland Drive; Lot 11, Block 2, Dolly Ridge 
Estates; Rezone From Jefferson County E-2 To Vestavia Hills R-1; Compatible Zoning For 
Annexation; Keavy And Nathan Ladner, Owners   (public hearing) 

 Ordinance Number 2951 – Annexation – 90 Day Final – 3652 Altadena Drive, Lot 4, Altadena 
Acres; Edgar And Cathey Davis, Owners    (public hearing) 

 Ordinance Number 2952 – Rezoning – 3652 Altadena Drive, Lot 4, Altadena Acres; Rezone 
From Jefferson County E-1 To Vestavia Hills E-2; Compatible Zoning For Annexation; Edgar 
And Cathey Davis, Owners    (public hearing) 

 Ordinance Number 2953 – Annexation – 90 Day Final – 2495 Dolly Ridge Trail; Lot 2, Block 
1, Dolly Ridge Estates, 1st Add; Patrick And Ellen Pantazis, Owners   (public hearing) 

 Ordinance Number 2954 – Rezoning – 2495 Dolly Ridge Trail; Lot 2, Block 1, Dolly Ridge 
Estates, 1st Add; Rezone From Jefferson County E-2 To Vestavia Hills R-1; Compatible 
Zoning For Annexation; Patrick And Ellen Pantazis, Owners    (public hearing) 

 Ordinance Number 2955 – Rezoning – 2768 Misty Lane, 2758 And 2764 Rocky Ridge Road; 
Rezone From Jefferson County E-2 To Vestavia Hills R-9, Planned Residential Subdivision; 
Prezoning Prior To Annexation For A Development Of 6 (Six) Single-Family Homes; 
Tamworth, LLC, Owners    (public hearing) 

 Ordinance Number 2956 – Annexation – 90 Day Final - 2768 Misty Lane, 2758 And 2764 
Rocky Ridge Road; Tamworth, LLC, Owners    (public hearing) 

 
CITIZEN COMMENTS 

 
 Roger Steur asked when the Library will reopen. 
 
 Mrs. Tucker, Library Director, explained that the Library Board is looking at renovations 
that’ll last until the first of November.  These renovations, along with the COVID-19 concerns, 
warrant leaving the facility closed until these are completed. 
 
 David Harwell, 1803 Catala Road, congratulated Mr. Head for winning a second term on 
the City Council.  He referred back to Item 6, Proclamation for Constitution Week, and stated 
that the Constitution is 232 years old and is one of the oldest in the world. He stated that he 
believes this is the only document that protects the people for the government and he felt as though 
the forefathers were geniuses to craft this document.  He offered pocket constitutions for any one 
who wishes to have a copy. 
 
 
 At 6:47 PM, Mrs. Cook made a motion to adjourn.  The meeting adjourned at 6:48 PM. 
 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
 
 



City Council Minutes 
September 14, 2020 

Page 12 
 

 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



Ordinance Number 2947 
Page 1 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2947 

ANNEXING CERTAIN TERRITORY TO THE 
CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA 
HILLS, ALABAMA. 

 WHEREAS, on the 28th day of May, 2020, a petition was presented to the City 

Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, proposing the annexation of certain 

property to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, under the provisions of Act 32 of the 

Special Session on the Alabama Legislature of 1964; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, at the time and place 

of its regular meeting on said date, made a determination that the matters contained in the 

Petition were true and that it was in the public interest that said property be annexed to the 

City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

1. That the following property which was described in said petition be annexed to

the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama: 

2601 Fargo Drive 
Lot 6, Block 2, Twin Branch Estates, South Sector 

Tingting Dong, Owner(s) 
2. That this Annexation shall become effective upon the adoption and approval of

this Ordinance in accordance with the provisions of law, after which the heretofore 

described property shall become a part of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

3. That the City Clerk be and is hereby directed to publish this Ordinance in

accordance with the requirements of the law and to file a copy hereof with the Probate 

Judge of Jefferson County, Alabama. 

ADOPTING and APPROVED this the 28th day of September, 2020. 

Rusty Weaver
Mayor Pro-Tem



Ordinance Number 2947 
Page 2 

ATTESTED BY: 

Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 

CERTIFICATION: 

I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2947 is a true and correct 
copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Vestavia 
Hills on the 28th day of September, 2020, as same appears in the official records of said 
City. 

Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, 
Vestavia Hills New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ 
day of ______________, 2020. 

Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



Ordinance Number 2947 
Page 3 



11/1/2019 

PARCEL #: 39 00 02 3 011 016.000 
OWNER: KIM JUNG SHICK & YONG HYUN KIM 
ADDRESS: 
LOCATION: 

2601 FARGO DR VESTAVIA AL 35226-2308 
2601 FARGO DR BIRMINGHAM AL 35226 

<< Prev Next>> [ 1 / 0 Records] Processing ... 

SUMMARY 

Untitled Page 

[ 111-C0] Baths: 3.0 H/C Sqft: 2,296 
18-055.0 Bed Rooms: 3 Land Sch: G1 
Land: 195,000 Imp: 150,600 Total: 345,600 
Acres: 0.000 Sales Info: 11/01/1997 $155,000 

Tax Year: 2019 Y 
LAr,Ci BUILDINGS SALE' PHOTOGRAPHS MAPS 

S U M M A R Y - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

ASSESSMENT - V A L U E - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - �

PROPERTY CLASS: 3 OVER 65 CODE: X 
EXEMPT CODE: 5-5 DISABILITY CODE: 
MUN CODE: 02 COUNTY HS YEAR: 0 
SCHOOL DIST: EXM OVERRIDE AMT: $0.00 
OVR ASD VALUE: $0.00 TOTAL MILLAGE: 50.1 

CLASS USE: 
FOREST ACRES: 0 TAX SALE: 
PREV YEAR VALUE: $251,300.00BOE VALUE: 0 

TAX INFO 

CLASS MUNCODE ASSD.VALUE 

STATE 3 2 $34,560 

COUNTY 3 2 $34,560 

SCHOOL 3 2 $34,560 

DIST SCHOOL 3 2 $34,560 

CITY 3 2 $34,560 

FOREST 3 2 $0 

SPC SCHOOLl 3 2 $34,560 

SPC SCHOOL2 3 2 $34,560 

LAND VALUE 10% 
LAND VALUE 20% 
CURRENT USE VALUE 

CLASS 2 

CLASS 3 
BLDG 001 

[DEACTIVATED] 

111 

$195,000 
$0 
$0 

$150,600 

TOTAL MARKET VALUE [APPR. VALUE: $345,600]: $345,600 
-Assesment O v e r r i d e : - - - - - - - - - - - - - �

MARKET VALUE:
CU VALUE: 
PENALTY: 
ASSESSED VALUE: 

TAX EXEMPTION TAX EXEMPTION TOTAL TAX 

$224.64 $34,560 $224.64 $0.00 

$466.56 $34,560 $466.56 $0.00 

$283.39 $34,560 $283.39 $0.00 

$0.00 $34,560 $0.00 $0.00 

$0.00 $34,560 $0.00 $0.00 

$0.00 $0 $0.00 $0.00 

$176.26 $34,560 $176.26 $0.00 

$580.61 $34,560 $580.61 $0.00 

ASSD. VALUE: $34,560.00 $1,731.46 GRAND TOTAL: $0.00 

D E E o s - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - �

INSTRUMENT NUMBER DATE 

9713-9982 11/24/1997 

- PAYMENT INFO 

PAY DATE TAX
YEAR
2019 

2018 

2017 

2016

2015

1/5/2015 2014

12/31/2013 2013 

11/16/2012 2012

20111208 2011 

20101203 2010 

PAID BY 

KIM JUNG SHICK 

BAC TAX SERVICES 
CORPORATION 
*** 
*** 

eringcapture.jccal.org/caportal/CA_PropertyTaxParcellnfo.aspx?ParcelNo=39 00 02 3 011 016.000 &TaxYear=2017 

FULLY PAID 

AMOUNT 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$955.00 

$1,040.17 

$1,039.68 

$1,053.20 

$1,053.20 
1/2 

Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2947



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2947



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2947



CITY OF VESTA VIA HILLS 
Department Review o f  Proposed Annexation 
(To be completed by Official City Reviewers) 

The following properties have requested to be annexed into the City. Please review this request 
and then forward your comments to the City Clerk as soon as is reasonably possible. 

Location: 2601 Fargo Drive

Engineering; Public Services 

2601 Fargo Drive -- no concerns noted; roadway and valley gutter are in good condition; property is 
already within a City maintenance area. 

Police Department: Date: Initials:._c(J:;;....,__J- = -- -

Comments: .... 

Fire Department: D a r e  b ? n i t i a l s : Z J : ; ; , r r e / 1  

Comments: 

Board of Education: 

Comments: 

Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2947



= 
= = >  

AD VALOREM TAX MILLAGE 

Millage Multiplier 

A S S E S S E D  VALUE 

$ 

AD VALOREM REVENUE 

0.02055 

0.02875 

0.0151 

0.0082 

0.05205 

10% 

$34,560 00 

$710.21 
$993.60 

$1,703.81 

$521.86 

$283.39 

TOTAL AD VALOREM REVENUE 

Legend 
City Revenue 
BOE Revenue 

$710.21 

$1,798.85 .. ,. 

City of Vestavia Hills 
Tax Calculator 

Homestead Properties 

Ad valorem to City General Fund: 

City BOE portion: 

District 20 School: 

Countywide School: 

Ad valorem to Schools (TOTAL): 

Property Address 

Appraised Value of Property 

Assessment Homestead Rate 

Assessed Value 

City portion of ad valorem 
BOE portion of ad valorem 
Total County remits to City for split with 
BOE 
SPC DISTl BOE local rev (County gives 
directly to BOE) 
Countvwlde School Tax to VH 

Annexation Revenue to CITY 

Annexation Revenue to BOE 

I • • • I • 

20.55mills 

28.75 mills 

15.lmills 

8.2mills 

52.05mills 

Citizen Access Portal 
Descri tor 

TOTAL MARKET VALUE 

ASSD.VALUE 

Citizen Access Portal 
Descriotor 

(Subset of CITY) 
(Subset of CITY) 

CITY 

SPCSCHOOLl 

SCHOOL 

CITY (General Fund portion) 
SCHOOL+ SPC SCHOOL1 + 
CITY (BOE ortion) 

Notes 

Notes 

(20.55 mills rate) 
(28. 75 mills rate) 

(15.1 mills rate) 
(8.2 mills rate) 

(20.55mills) 

(8.2 mills+ 15.1 mills+ 28.75 mills) 

Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2947



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2947



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2947



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2947



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2947



Ordinance Number 2948 
Page 1 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2948 

AN ORDINANCE TO FURTHER AMEND THE ZONING 
ORDINANCE AND THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, ADOPTED SEPTEMBER 16, 1985, 
AND AS LAST AMENDED SO AS TO CHANGE THE CLASS OF 
DISTRICT ZONING OF PROPERTY FROM JEFFERSON 
COUNTY R-1 TO VESTAVIA HILLS R-2 

BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

as follows:  That the Zoning Ordinance and Zoning Map of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, adopted September 16, 1985, and as last amended so as to change the class of 

district zoning of the following described property from Jefferson County R-1 (medium 

density residential district) to Vestavia Hills R-2 (medium density residential district):  

2601 Fargo Drive 
Lot 6, Block 2, Twin Branch Estates, South Sector 

Tingting Dong, Owner(s) 

APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 28th day of September, 2020. 

ATTESTED BY: 

Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 

Rusty Weaver
Mayor Pro-Tem



Ordinance Number 2948 
Page 2 

CERTIFICATION: 

I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2948 is a true and correct 
copy of such 28th day of September, 2020, as same appears in the official records of said 
City. 

Posted at Vestavia Hills City Hall, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, New Merkle 
House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ day of ______________, 
2020. 

Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



Ordinance Number 2948 
Page 3 

Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2948



1

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION

Date:     JANUARY 9, 2020

CASE: P-0820-20

REQUESTED ACTION: Rezoning JC R-1 to Vestavia Hills R-2

ADDRESS/LOCATION: 2601 Fargo Dr.

APPLICANT/OWNER: Tingting Dong

GENERAL DISCUSSION: This is a compatible rezoning of annexed property on 
Fargo Dr. from JC R-1 to VH-R-2. Property was annexed overnight by 
Ordinance 2881 on 11/13/19.

VESTAVIA HILLS COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: The request is consistent with 
the plan for low density residential.

STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION:

1. City Planner Review:  I have looked at all of the relevant zoning /
subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application,
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc.  Notification has been sent
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law.  I have reviewed this request and
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.

City Planner Recommendation:  No recommendation

2. City Engineer Review:  I have reviewed the application and I have no issues
with this request.

3. City Fire Marshal Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no
issues with this request.

4. Building Safety Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no issues
with this request.

MOTION Mr. Weaver made a motion to recommend Rezoning from JC R-1 to Vestavia 
Hills R-2 for the property located At 2601 Fargo Dr. Second was by Mr. Sykes. Motion was 
carried on a roll call; vote as follows:

Mr. Maloof– yes Mr. Romeo – yes 

Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2948



2

Mr. Ferrell – yes Mr. Sykes– yes
Ms. Cobb – yes Mr. Vercher – yes
Mr. Weaver – yes Mrs. Barnes – yes
Motion carried.

Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2948



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2948



Ordinance Number 2949 
Page 1 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2949 

ANNEXING CERTAIN TERRITORY TO THE 
CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA 
HILLS, ALABAMA. 

 WHEREAS, on the 28th day of May, 2020, a petition was presented to the City 

Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, proposing the annexation of certain 

property to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, under the provisions of Act 32 of the 

Special Session on the Alabama Legislature of 1964; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, at the time and place 

of its regular meeting on said date, made a determination that the matters contained in the 

Petition were true and that it was in the public interest that said property be annexed to the 

City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

1. That the following property which was described in said petition be annexed to

the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama: 

2520 Skyland Drive 
Lot 11, Blk 2, Dolly Ridge Est. 

Keavy and Nathan Ladner, Owner(s) 

2. That this Annexation shall become effective upon the adoption and approval of

this Ordinance in accordance with the provisions of law, after which the heretofore 

described property shall become a part of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

3. That the City Clerk be and is hereby directed to publish this Ordinance in

accordance with the requirements of the law and to file a copy hereof with the Probate 

Judge of Jefferson County, Alabama. 

ADOPTING and APPROVED this the 28th day of September, 2020. 

Rusty Weaver
Mayor Pro- Tem



Ordinance Number 2949 
Page 2 

ATTESTED BY: 

Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 

CERTIFICATION: 

I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2949 is a true and correct 
copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Vestavia 
Hills on the 28th day of September, 2020, as same appears in the official records of said 
City. 

Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, 
Vestavia Hills New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ 
day of ______________, 2020. 

Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



Ordinance Number 2949 
Page 3 



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2949



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2949



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2949



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2949



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2949



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2949



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2949



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2949



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2949



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2949



Ordinance Number 2950 
Page 1 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2950 

AN ORDINANCE TO FURTHER AMEND THE ZONING 
ORDINANCE AND THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, ADOPTED SEPTEMBER 16, 1985, 
AND AS LAST AMENDED SO AS TO CHANGE THE CLASS OF 
DISTRICT ZONING OF PROPERTY FROM JEFFERSON 
COUNTY E-2 TO VESTAVIA HILLS R-1 

BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

as follows:  That the Zoning Ordinance and Zoning Map of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, adopted September 16, 1985, and as last amended so as to change the class of 

district zoning of the following described property from Jefferson County E-2 (low density 

residential district) to Vestavia Hills R-1 (low density residential district):  

2520 Skyland Drive 
Lot 11, Block 2, Dolly Ridge Estates 
Nathan and Keavy Ladner, Owner(s) 

APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 28th day of September, 2020. 

ATTESTED BY: 

Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 

Rusty Weaver
Mayor Pro-Tem



Ordinance Number 2950 
Page 2 

 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2950 is a true and correct 
copy of such 28th day of September, 2020, as same appears in the official records of said 
City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills City Hall, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, New Merkle 
House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ day of ______________, 
2020. 
 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 

 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2950 
Page 3 

 

Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2950



1

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION

Date:     AUGUST 13, 2020

CASE: P-0820-22

REQUESTED ACTION: Rezoning JC E-2 to Vestavia Hills R-1

ADDRESS/LOCATION: 2520 Skyland Dr.

APPLICANT/OWNER: Nathan & Keavy Ladner

GENERAL DISCUSSION: This is a compatible rezoning of annexed property on 
Skyland Dr. from JC E-2 to VH R-1. Property was annexed overnight by Ordinance 
2927 on 5/28/20.

VESTAVIA HILLS COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: The request is consistent with 
the plan for low density residential.

STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION:

1. City Planner Review:  I have looked at all of the relevant zoning /
subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application,
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc.  Notification has been sent
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law.  I have reviewed this request and
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.

City Planner Recommendation:  No recommendation

2. City Engineer Review:  I have reviewed the application and I have no issues
with this request.

3. City Fire Marshal Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no
issues with this request.

4. Building Safety Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no issues
with this request.

MOTION Mr. Weaver made a motion to recommend Rezoning from JC E-2 to Vestavia 
Hills R-1 for the property located At 2520 Skyland Dr. Second was by Ms. Cobb. Motion was 
carried on a roll call; vote as follows:

Mr. Maloof– yes Mr. Romeo – yes 
Mr. Ferrell – yes Mr. Sykes– yes

Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2950



2

Ms. Cobb – yes Mr. Vercher – yes
Mr. Weaver – yes Mrs. Barnes – yes
Motion carried.

Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2950



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2950



Ordinance Number 2951 
Page 1 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2951 

ANNEXING CERTAIN TERRITORY TO THE 
CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA 
HILLS, ALABAMA. 

 WHEREAS, on the 28th day of May, 2020, a petition was presented to the City 

Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, proposing the annexation of certain 

property to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, under the provisions of Act 32 of the 

Special Session on the Alabama Legislature of 1964; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, at the time and place 

of its regular meeting on said date, made a determination that the matters contained in the 

Petition were true and that it was in the public interest that said property be annexed to the 

City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

1. That the following property which was described in said petition be annexed to

the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama: 

3652 Altadena Drive 
Lot 4, Altadena Acres  

Edgar and Cathey Davis, Owner(s) 

2. That this Annexation shall become effective upon the adoption and approval of

this Ordinance in accordance with the provisions of law, after which the heretofore 

described property shall become a part of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

3. That the City Clerk be and is hereby directed to publish this Ordinance in

accordance with the requirements of the law and to file a copy hereof with the Probate 

Judge of Jefferson County, Alabama. 

ADOPTING and APPROVED this the 28th day of September, 2020. 

Rusty Weaver
Mayor Pro-Tem



Ordinance Number 2951 
Page 2 

ATTESTED BY: 

Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 

CERTIFICATION: 

I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2951 is a true and correct 
copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Vestavia 
Hills on the 28th day of September, 2020, as same appears in the official records of said 
City. 

Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, 
Vestavia Hills New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ 
day of ______________, 2020. 

Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



Ordinance Number 2951 
Page 3 





















Ordinance Number 2952 
Page 1 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2952 

AN ORDINANCE TO FURTHER AMEND THE ZONING 
ORDINANCE AND THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, ADOPTED SEPTEMBER 16, 1985, 
AND AS LAST AMENDED SO AS TO CHANGE THE CLASS OF 
DISTRICT ZONING OF PROPERTY FROM JEFFERSON 
COUNTY E-1 TO VESTAVIA HILLS E-2 

BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

as follows:  That the Zoning Ordinance and Zoning Map of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, adopted September 16, 1985, and as last amended so as to change the class of 

district zoning of the following described property from Jefferson County E-1 (low density 

residential district) to Vestavia Hills E-2 (low density residential district):  

3652 Altadena Drive 
Lot 4, Altadena Acres 

Edgar and Cathey Davis, Owner(s) 

APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 28th day of September, 2020. 

ATTESTED BY: 

Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 

Rusty Weaver
Mayor Pro-Tem



Ordinance Number 2952 
Page 2 

CERTIFICATION: 

I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2952 is a true and correct 
copy of such 28th day of September, 2020, as same appears in the official records of said 
City. 

Posted at Vestavia Hills City Hall, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, New Merkle 
House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ day of ______________, 
2020. 

Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



Ordinance Number 2952 
Page 3 

Ordinance No. 2952



1

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION

Date:     AUGUST 13, 2020

CASE: P-0820-24

REQUESTED ACTION: Rezoning JC E-1 to Vestavia Hills E-2

ADDRESS/LOCATION: 3652 Altadena Dr.

APPLICANT/OWNER: Cathey G. Davis

GENERAL DISCUSSION: This is a compatible rezoning of annexed property on 
Altadena Dr. from JC E-1 to VH E-1. Property was annexed overnight by Ordinance 
2928 on 5/28/20.

VESTAVIA HILLS COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: The request is consistent with 
the plan for low density residential.

STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION:

1. City Planner Review:  I have looked at all of the relevant zoning / 
subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application, 
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc.  Notification has been sent 
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law.  I have reviewed this request and 
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.   

City Planner Recommendation:  No recommendation

2. City Engineer Review:  I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request. 

3. City Fire Marshal Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no 
issues with this request. 

4. Building Safety Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request. 

MOTION Mr. Weaver made a motion to recommend Rezoning from JC E-1 to Vestavia 
Hills E-2 for the property located At 3652 Altadena Dr. Second was by Ms. Cobb. Motion was 
carried on a roll call; vote as follows:

Mr. Maloof– yes Mr. Romeo – yes 
Mr. Ferrell – yes Mr. Sykes– yes

Ordinance No. 2952



2

Ms. Cobb – yes Mr. Vercher – yes
Mr. Weaver – yes Mrs. Barnes – yes
Motion carried.

Ordinance No. 2952



Ordinance No. 2952



Ordinance Number 2953 
Page 1 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2953 

ANNEXING CERTAIN TERRITORY TO THE 
CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA 
HILLS, ALABAMA. 

 WHEREAS, on the 28th day of May, 2020, a petition was presented to the City 

Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, proposing the annexation of certain 

property to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, under the provisions of Act 32 of the 

Special Session on the Alabama Legislature of 1964; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, at the time and place 

of its regular meeting on said date, made a determination that the matters contained in the 

Petition were true and that it was in the public interest that said property be annexed to the 

City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

1. That the following property which was described in said petition be annexed to

the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama: 

2495 Dolly Ridge Trail 
Lot 2, Blk 1, Dolly Ridge Est., 1st Add 
Patrick and Ellen Pantazis, Owner(s) 

2. That this Annexation shall become effective upon the adoption and approval of

this Ordinance in accordance with the provisions of law, after which the heretofore 

described property shall become a part of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

3. That the City Clerk be and is hereby directed to publish this Ordinance in

accordance with the requirements of the law and to file a copy hereof with the Probate 

Judge of Jefferson County, Alabama. 

ADOPTING and APPROVED this the 28th day of September, 2020. 

Rusty Weaver
Mayor Pro-Tem



Ordinance Number 2953 
Page 2 

ATTESTED BY: 

Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 

CERTIFICATION: 

I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2953 is a true and correct 
copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Vestavia 
Hills on the 28th day of September, 2020, as same appears in the official records of said 
City. 

Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, 
Vestavia Hills New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ 
day of ______________, 2020. 

Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



Ordinance Number 2953 
Page 3 

 

 



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2953



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2953



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2953



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2953



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2953



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2953



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2953



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2953



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2953



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2953



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2953



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2953



Ordinance Number 2954 
Page 1 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2954 

AN ORDINANCE TO FURTHER AMEND THE ZONING 
ORDINANCE AND THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, ADOPTED SEPTEMBER 16, 1985, 
AND AS LAST AMENDED SO AS TO CHANGE THE CLASS OF 
DISTRICT ZONING OF PROPERTY FROM JEFFERSON 
COUNTY E-2 TO VESTAVIA HILLS R-1 

BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

as follows:  That the Zoning Ordinance and Zoning Map of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, adopted September 16, 1985, and as last amended so as to change the class of 

district zoning of the following described property from Jefferson County E-2 (low density 

residential district) to Vestavia Hills R-1 (low density residential district):  

2495 Dolly Ridge Trail 
Lot 3, Block 1, Dolly Ridge Est, 1st Add 

Patrick and Ellen Pantazis, Owner(s) 

APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 28th day of September, 2020. 

ATTESTED BY: 

Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 

Rusty Weaver
Mayor Pro-Tem



Ordinance Number 2954 
Page 2 

 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2954 is a true and correct 
copy of such 28th day of September, 2020, as same appears in the official records of said 
City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills City Hall, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, New Merkle 
House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ day of ______________, 
2020. 
 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 

 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2954 
Page 3 

 

Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2954



1

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION

Date:     AUGUST 13, 2020

CASE: P-0820-22

REQUESTED ACTION: Rezoning JC E-2 to Vestavia Hills R-1

ADDRESS/LOCATION: 2495 Dolly Ridge Trl.

APPLICANT/OWNER: Patrick & Ellen Pantazis

GENERAL DISCUSSION: This is a compatible rezoning of annexed property on 
Skyland Dr. from JC E-2 to VH R-1. Property was annexed overnight by Ordinance 
2927 on 5/28/20.

VESTAVIA HILLS COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: The request is consistent with 
the plan for low density residential.

STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION:

1. City Planner Review:  I have looked at all of the relevant zoning /
subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application,
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc.  Notification has been sent
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law.  I have reviewed this request and
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.

City Planner Recommendation:  No recommendation

2. City Engineer Review:  I have reviewed the application and I have no issues
with this request.

3. City Fire Marshal Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no
issues with this request.

4. Building Safety Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no issues
with this request.

MOTION Mr. Weaver made a motion to recommend Rezoning from JC E-2 to Vestavia 
Hills R-1 for the property located At 2495 Dolly Ridge Trl. Second was by Ms. Cobb. Motion 
was carried on a roll call; vote as follows:

Mr. Maloof– yes Mr. Romeo – yes 
Mr. Ferrell – yes Mr. Sykes– yes

Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2954



2

Ms. Cobb – yes Mr. Vercher – yes
Mr. Weaver – yes Mrs. Barnes – yes
Motion carried.

Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2954



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2954



Ordinance Number 2955 
Page 1 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2955 

AN ORDINANCE TO FURTHER AMEND THE ZONING 
ORDINANCE AND THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, ADOPTED SEPTEMBER 16, 1985, 
AND AS LAST AMENDED SO AS TO CHANGE THE CLASS OF 
DISTRICT ZONING OF PROPERTY FROM JEFFERSON 
COUNTY E-2 TO VESTAVIA HILLS R-9 

BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

as follows:  That the Zoning Ordinance and Zoning Map of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, adopted September 16, 1985, and as last amended so as to change the class of 

district zoning of the following described property from Jefferson County E-2 (low density 

residential district) to Vestavia Hills R-9 (planned residential district):  

2768 Misty Lane, 2758 & 2764 Rocky Ridge Road 
Tamworth, LLC, Owner(s) 

More particularly described as follows: 
A parcel of land containing: 4.863 Acres more or less, located in the Southeast 
quarter of Section 20, Township 18 South, Range 2 West, Jefferson County 
Alabama: more particularly described as follows: 

COMMENCE at the NW Corner of the SW 1/4 of the SE 1/4 of said Section 20: 
thence run South 420 feet thence left 90 degrees 34 minutes 49 seconds, 155.57 feet 
to the POINT OF BEGINNING; thence continue along last stated course for a 
distance of 580.22 feet to a point; thence turn in interior angle to the left 
counterclockwise 112°51’26” and run a distance of 154.59 feet to a point; thence 
turn an angle right 68°06’43” and run a distance of 217.60 feet to a point of the 
West Right-of-Way line of Rocky Ridge Road, being a point along a curve to the 
left along said Right-of-Way line with a central angle of 03°25’25”, a radius of 
1136.15 feet, and an arc length of 67.89 feet; thence turn an interior angle to the 
left counterclockwise 110°54’38” to the chord of said curve of S 22°02’23” E and 
run a chord distance of 67.88 feet to a point on a curve to the left along said Right-
of-Way line with a central angle of 04°30’39”, a radius of 1119.74 feet and an arc 
length of 88.15 feet; thence S 18°05’13” E and run a chord distance of 88.13 feet 
to a point; turn an interior angle left counterclockwise from the chord of the 
previously stated curve 71°50’50” and run a distance of 912.22 feet to a point; 
thence turn an interior angle left counterclockwise 90°10’44” and run a distance of 
279.18 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING. 

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED that said rezoning shall be conditioned upon the 

following conditions: 



Ordinance Number 2955 
Page 2 

1. Rezoning shall be conditioned upon the plat plan presented and attached to this
Ordinance Number 2955; and

2. All covenants, conditions and restrictions regarding the maintenance of the private
street and infrastructure shall be submitted to the Planning and Zoning Commission
and approved with the final plat approval.

APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 28th day of September, 2020.

ATTESTED BY: 

Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 

CERTIFICATION: 

I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2955 is a true and correct 
copy of such 28th day of September, 2020, as same appears in the official records of said 
City. 

Posted at Vestavia Hills City Hall, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, New Merkle 
House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ day of ______________, 
2020. 

Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 

Rusty Weaver
Mayor Pro-Tem



Ordinance Number 2955 
Page 3 



1

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION

Date:     AUGUST 13, 2020

CASE: P-0820-23

REQUESTED ACTION: Rezoning JC E-2 to Vestavia Hills R-9

ADDRESS/LOCATION: 2768 Misty Ln. And 2758 & 2764 Rocky Ridge Rd..

APPLICANT/OWNER: Tamworth, LLC

GENERAL DISCUSSION: Applicant is seeking non-compatible rezoning for 
properties in the annexation process on Rocky Ridge Rd.  across from Rosemont 
Place. Applicant proposes a six-lot boutique subdivision with a private street ending 
in a hammerhead. Lot sizes exceed the minimum requirements of the compatible R-1
zoning, however, due to the nature of the land and setback considerations R-9 zoning 
is sought. Setbacks for the subdivision are 20’ front setback from the back of curb, 
There is an existing cell tower on site which will remain and be incorporated into the 
site. City Council approved 90 Day Annexation Resolution 5248 on 6/8/20.

VESTAVIA HILLS COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: The request is consistent with 
the plan for low density residential.

STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION:

1. City Planner Review:  I have looked at all of the relevant zoning /
subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application,
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc.  Notification has been sent
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law.  I have reviewed this request and
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.

City Planner Recommendation:  Recommend condition that HOA
documents regarding street maintenance/repair must be submitted with final
plat.

2. City Engineer Review:  I have reviewed the application and I have no issues
with this request.

3. City Fire Marshal Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no
issues with this request.

4. Building Safety Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no issues
with this request.



2

MOTION Mr. Weaver made a motion to recommend Rezoning from JC E-2 to Vestavia 
Hills R-9 for the property located At 2768 Misty Ln. And 2758 & 2764 Rocky Ridge Rd. with 
the following conditions:

1. Rezoning conditioned on site plan presented;
2. All covenants, conditions, and restrictions regarding

to the maintenance of the private street and
infrastructure will be submitted with the final plat.

Second was by Mr. Vercher. Motion was carried on a roll call; vote as follows:

Mr. Maloof– yes Mr. Romeo – yes 
Mr. Ferrell – yes Mr. Sykes– yes
Ms. Cobb – yes Mr. Vercher – yes
Mr. Weaver – yes Mrs. Barnes – yes
Motion carried.













































Ordinance Number 2956 
Page 1 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2956 

ANNEXING CERTAIN TERRITORY TO THE 
CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA 
HILLS, ALABAMA. 

 WHEREAS, on the 8th day of June, 2020, a petition was presented to the City 

Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, proposing the annexation of certain 

property to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, under the provisions of Act 32 of the 

Special Session on the Alabama Legislature of 1964; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, at the time and place 

of its regular meeting on said date, made a determination that the matters contained in the 

Petition were true and that it was in the public interest that said property be annexed to the 

City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

1. That the following property which was described in said petition be annexed to

the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama: 

2758 & 2764 Rocky Ridge Road & 2768 Misty Lane 
Tamworth, LLC, Owner(s) 

More particularly described as follows: 
A parcel of land containing: 4.863 Acres more or less, located in the Southeast 
quarter of Section 20, Township 18 South, Range 2 West, Jefferson County 
Alabama: more particularly described as follows: 

COMMENCE at the NW Corner of the SW 1/4 of the SE 1/4 of said Section 20: 
thence run South 420 feet thence left 90 degrees 34 minutes 49 seconds, 155.57 feet 
to the POINT OF BEGINNING; thence continue along last stated course for a 
distance of 580.22 feet to a point; thence turn in interior angle to the left 
counterclockwise 112°51’26” and run a distance of 154.59 feet to a point; thence 
turn an angle right 68°06’43” and run a distance of 217.60 feet to a point of the 
West Right-of-Way line of Rocky Ridge Road, being a point along a curve to the 
left along said Right-of-Way line with a central angle of 03°25’25”, a radius of 
1136.15 feet, and an arc length of 67.89 feet; thence turn an interior angle to the 
left counterclockwise 110°54’38” to the chord of said curve of S 22°02’23” E and 
run a chord distance of 67.88 feet to a point on a curve to the left along said Right-
of-Way line with a central angle of 04°30’39”, a radius of 1119.74 feet and an arc 
length of 88.15 feet; thence S 18°05’13” E and run a chord distance of 88.13 feet 



Ordinance Number 2956 
Page 2 

to a point; turn an interior angle left counterclockwise from the chord of the 
previously stated curve 71°50’50” and run a distance of 912.22 feet to a point; 
thence turn an interior angle left counterclockwise 90°10’44” and run a distance of 
279.18 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING. 

2. That this Annexation shall become effective upon the adoption and approval of

this Ordinance in accordance with the provisions of law, after which the heretofore 

described property shall become a part of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

3. That the City Clerk be and is hereby directed to publish this Ordinance in

accordance with the requirements of the law and to file a copy hereof with the Probate 

Judge of Jefferson County, Alabama. 

ADOPTING and APPROVED this the 28th day of September, 2020. 

ATTESTED BY: 

Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 

Rusty Weaver
Mayor Pro-Tem



Ordinance Number 2956 
Page 3 

 

 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2956 is a true and correct 
copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Vestavia 
Hills on the 28th day of September, 2020, as same appears in the official records of said 
City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, 
Vestavia Hills New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ 
day of ______________, 2020. 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 



Ordinance Number 2956 
Page 4 

 

 



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2956



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2956



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2956



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2956



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2956



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2956



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2956



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2956



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2956



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2956



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2956



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2956



ORDINANCE NUMBER 2957 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORZING THE MAYOR AND CITY MANAGER 
TO EXECUTE AND DELIVER A MEMO OF UNDERSTANDING WITH 
THE VESTAVIA HILLS CHAMBER OF COMMERCE 

WHEREAS, in December 2002, the Mayor executed and delivered an agreement with the 

Vestavia Hills Chamber of Commerce (“the Chamber”) detailing services for the City to be 

performed by the Chamber in return for office space and utilities to be provided by the City, a copy 

of said agreement is marked as Exhibit A, attached to and incorporated into this Ordinance Number 

2957 as if written fully therein; and 

WHEREAS, in a strategic planning session by the Chamber, a memo of understanding 

(“MOU”) was drafted revising said conditions and presented to the City Manager and City 

Council, a copy of said MOU is marked as Exhibit B, attached to and incorporated into this 

Ordinance Number 2957 as if written fully therein; and 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council feel it is in the best public interest to authorize 

the Mayor and City Manager to execute and deliver said MOU with the Chamber. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 

OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The Mayor and City Manager are hereby authorized to execute and deliver a MOU with

the Chamber of Commerce as detailed in Exhibit B; and

2. This Ordinance Number 2957 shall become effective immediately upon adoption and

approval.

DONE, ORDERED and APPROVED this the 28th day of September, 2020.

Rusty Weaver 
Mayor Pro-Tem 

ATTESTED BY: 

Rebecca Leavings 
City Council 



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2957



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2957



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2957



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2957



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2957



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2957



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2957



 
 

Memorandum of Understanding 
 
 
To: Karen Odle, President/CEO 

Vestavia Hills Chamber of Commerce 
 
From:  Jeff Downes 

City Manager  
City of Vestavia Hills 

 
Date:  October 1, 2020 
 

Re: Economic Development Strategic Plan 
 

As a part of the on-going economic development strategy of the City of Vestavia Hills (City) 
and in keeping with the existing high-level responsibilities enumerated in the 2013 MOU 
between the Vestavia Hills Chamber of Commerce (CoC) and City and the 2002 Contract 
for Services between the CoC and City (included as Exhibit 1), the City shall provide, 
subject to City Council approval, a supplemental appropriation to the CoC in the amount of 
$30,000. In return for this payment, the Chamber shall have the general responsibility of 
serving as the marketing lead for the City's economic development plan and coordinator of 
brand development for the City. This general goal shall be accomplished, at a minimum, 
through the following tasks: 

 
1. Continue brand development of the City Council adopted branding concept 

through the following actions: 
a) Work with landlords or appointees in each Entertainment District to 

assist with the development/promotion of events in their respective 
areas and/or city wide efforts. These may include, but are not limited to: 

• Wine Walk 
• Savor the Summer 

b) Work with existing groups to promote/assist on-going events that are 
already in operation. 

 
2. Develop two programmatic activities for business enhancement in targeted 

business corridors. These programmatic activities will involve the engagement and 
organization of the merchants of those areas but utilize resources in the 
appropriation for brand conscious advertising or program supplies to support 

Exhibit B - Ordinance No. 2957



public involvement with the selected programs. (These programs might involve 
themed events surrounding Valentine's Day, St Patrick's Day, Halloween, or some 
other notable date) 

a) The Chamber shall organize a working group of its members to envision, 
plan and implement the two activities. The Chamber shall evaluate the 
effectiveness of these activities, annually, to determine the ability to 
achieve the goal of economic growth within the city. 

• The two current activities include: Back 2 School Night in Cahaba 
Heights and Helping Hands in the Hills Day  

b) Determine, within budget constraints, the most effective means to market 
existing City of Vestavia Hills businesses while being conscious of brand 
loyalty.   

 
3. Produce micro strategies that reinforce and grow current businesses within 

Vestavia Hills. The strategies should include economic growth strategies in specific 
trade areas; determine strategies by business sector (i.e. retail, service and 
professional sectors.) as well as strategies that reinforce brand identity. These efforts 
should produce the following output: 

a) A written plan for each area of concentration 
b) A budget to accomplish said effort 
c) An outcome measure of success with a timeline for implementation 
d) A dedicated new or existing human resource responsible for implementation 
e) A recommendation of needed additional financial resources to accomplish the 

particular micro strategy 
Upon submission of a particular micro strategy, the City will review and determine 
resources supplemental to this agreement for support of the request. 

 

4. The CoC shall keep the City apprised of projects to support the existing 
businesses of Vestavia Hills and serve as the primary communicator to that 
existing business community. 

5. In an effort to focus on the growth of businesses within the geographic 

boundaries of the City of Vestavia Hills, the CoC shall keep a uniquely 
identified list of businesses located within the City of Vestavia Hills for the 
purpose of business promotion and economic growth. This list shall be promoted 
through the utilization of various strategies while not precluding the CoC’s 
responsibility to support its membership regardless of the location of the particular 
member.  

Exhibit B - Ordinance No. 2957



6. The CoC shall develop strategies to assist in the welcoming of new residents

and new businesses that relocate or establish operations in the City of Vestavia
Hills. Furthermore, the CoC shall serve as a physical location for visitors and
other interested parties to receive a welcome packet and materials that promote
the city consistent with our branding guidelines and goals.

7. The supplemental appropriation may be used to offset the administrative and
personnel costs of the CoC in accomplishing these tasks.

8. While supporting each other’s activities, the City shall serve as the primary lead
for strategic new business creation while the CoC shall serve as the primary
lead for improving the business climate within Vestavia Hills to support existing
businesses. 

9. CoC shall include the City of Vestavia Hills and its representative(s) as active
members of its organization

Vestavia Hills Chamber of Commerce City of Vestavia Hills 
  Approval   Approval 

  President  Mayor, City of Vestavia Hills 
 Vestavia Hills Chamber of Commerce 

  Date Date 

City Manager, City of Vestavia Hills

Date 

Exhibit B - Ordinance No. 2957



ORDINANCE NUMBER 2958 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR AND THE CITY 
MANAGER TO EXECUTE AND DELIVER A THREE-YEAR 
AGREEMENT WITH RIVERTREE SYSTEMS, INC., FOR AUDITING 
SERVICES 

WHEREAS, the City of Vestavia Hills designated Rivertree Systems, Inc. (“Rivertree”, 

for auditing and collection services pursuant to a certain written agreement which is set to expire 

on September 18, 2020; and 

WHEREAS, the Finance Director has received a new 3-year agreement with Rivertree 

with amendments as required under Act No. 2016-406 of the Alabama Legislature regarding Final 

Assessments and Terminations.  A copy of said agreement is marked as “Exhibit A” attached to 

and incorporated into this Ordinance Number 2958 as if written fully therein; and 

WHEREAS, the Finance Director and City Manager have reviewed said agreement and 

have recommended approval to continue utilization of Rivertree’s services. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 

OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The Mayor and City Manager are hereby authorized to execute and deliver said agreement 

with Rivertree Systems, Inc.; and

2. This Ordinance Number 2958 shall become effective immediately upon adoption and 

approval.

APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 28th day of September, 2020. 

Rusty Weaver 
Mayor Pro-Tem 

ATTESTED BY: 

Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2958



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2958



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2958



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2958



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2958



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2958



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2958



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2958



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2958



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2958



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2958


	2020_0928CC_A
	Proclamation Down Syndrome Aware Day 2020
	Ordinance 2947
	Work Session Minutes 09 14 2020
	Minutes 09 14 2020
	Ordinance 2948
	Ordinance 2949
	Ordinance 2950
	Ordinance 2951
	Ordinance 2952
	Ordinance 2953
	Ordinance 2954
	Ordinance 2955
	Ordinance 2956
	Ordinance 2957
	Ordinance 2958



